HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 4, 2014

8:48 a. m
8:48: 06 AM
CALL TO ORDER
Co-Chair Austerman called the House Finance Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:48 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Al an Austerman, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara
Representative David Quttenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Cathy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanm e WI son
VEVMBERS ABSENT
None
ALSO PRESENT
Dani el Ceor ge, Staff, Representati ve Bill Stoltze;
Representati ve Pet e Hi ggi ns; Les Mor se, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of Educati on and Early
Devel opnent .
PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
M ke Coons, Self, Pal ner; Mary Nanuwak, Self, Anchorage.
SUMVARY
HB 199 VPSO FI REARMS

HB 199 was REPORTED out
pass"”

House Fi nance Committee 1

of commttee with a "do
reconmendation and with a new zero fisca

03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



note from the House Finance Committee for the
Department of Public Safety.

HB 220 REPEAL SECONDARY SCHOCOL EXI' T EXAM

HB 220 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

SB 125 REJECT RECOMVMVENDATI ON OF COWP. COWM SSI ON
SB 125 was REPORTED out of committee with a "do
pass" recommendat i on and Wi th previ ously
publ i shed zero fiscal note: FN1(ADM.

#hb199
HOUSE BILL NO 199

"An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety
regul ations allowing village public safety officers to
carry firearns."

8:49: 27 AM

DANI EL  CGEORGE, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  BILL  STOLTZE,
expl ained the new zero fiscal inpact note from the House
Finance Comrittee. He explained that the new fiscal note
reflected zero operating, no change in revenue noted, and
zero fund source changes. The new note replaced the
previ ous note.

8:51: 25 AM

Co-Chair Austerman solicited public testinony. There being
none public testinony was CLOSED.

8:52:31 AM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT HB 199 out of conmttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 199 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do pass”
reconmendation and with a new zero fiscal note from the
House Finance Commttee for the Departnent of Public
Safety.

8:53: 00 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



AT EASE

8:54: 20 AM
RECONVENED

#hb220
HOUSE BI LL NO. 220

"An Act repealing the secondary student conpetency
exam nation and related requirenents; and providing
for an effective date."

8:54:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE  HI GG NS, summarized the  sponsor
st at enent :

CS HB 220 is up for consideration this session. This
| egislation repeals the secondary student conpetency
exam nation and related reporting requirenents for
these exans as required by AS 14.03.075 and AS
14.07. 165(5) .

The repeal of Hi gh School Qualifying Exam (HSGQE) or
“Exit Exanf is a step forward in the process to reform
our Al aska education system This hurdle was created
to nmeasure student achievenent followed by federal
pressure created with No Child Left Behind Act of
2001.

This legislation equates to a savings of approxi mately
2.7 mllion for the State of Al aska that can be put to
better use for the education of our children.

To continue to fund these exans no | onger mekes fi scal
sense for our state and nost inportantly for our
chi | dren.

The Committee Substitute for HB 220 28-LS0947\ U
| nserts the | anguage

TRANSI TI ON: STUDENT TESTI NG | N PROGRESS.

Until June 30, 2017, a school district shall continue
to administer the conpetency exam nation for a student
who seeks to qualify for a secondary school diploma
This provides fairness for students who are in
transition.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



8:57:34 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the |egislation wuld save the

state $1.4 mllion for the next fiscal year, and not $2.7
mllion. Representative Higgins clarified that the state
woul d fulfill the contract for the last tinme in 2015.
8:58:18 AM

Representative WIson asked why the program was not ending
in the 2014 school year. Representative Hi ggins understood
that the contract was good until 2015 and it would be
better to honor the original contract than to spend tine
and noney on new contract negoti ations.

Representative Higgins assured the commttee that the test
would end in the 2014 school year. Students that had failed
the test would have the opportunity to take the test
t hrough 2015 in order to receive their high school diplona

9:00: 18 AM

LES MORSE, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT, i ntroduced hinsel f.

9: 00: 34 AM

Representative Gara asked whether students who would
graduate by 2015 would still be required to take the exam
Representative Higgins explained that if the student were
graduating in 2014, and could not pass the exam they would
still receive a certificate of achievement. He said that if
a student still wanted receive their high school diplom
they woul d have the opportunity to retake the test in 2015,
when the test would still be offered but not required.

9:01: 58 AM

Representative Gara asked why the students that did not
pass the exam in 2014 would need to retake it in 2015 in
or der to receive a diplona. Representative Higgins
responded that attorneys for the state had decided that the
cl eanest way to phase out the test would be to allow every
student the opportunity to pass the standard and be done
with it.

9:03: 23 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



9:03:45 AM

Representative Holmes asked if the idea of continuing
through to 2015 stemred fromthat by the tinme the bill went
into effect the 2014 school year would already be over. She
asked whether students who had failed the exam during the
entire existence of the program would have the opportunity
to retake the test.

Representative Hi ggins shared that the whole purpose behind
allowing the test to phase out through 2015 was to give
students the opportunity to retake the test. He added that
there was a possibility that the bill could nake it to the
governor's desk before the 2014 school year ended, but that
it was unlikely.

9: 06: 05 AM

M. Mrse spoke to the exit ranp and how it affected the
fiscal note. He explained that the note indicated the total
current cost of the exam was $2.7 nillion. He stated that
there would be a savings of $1.4 mllion in 2015 because
the contract would be reduced by the renoval of every
conponent given to current sitting students; the only
students that would participate in any testing in 2015
woul d be those who held a certificate of achievenment. He
furthered that the certificate nmeant that the student had
net all of the local requirenents but had not net the
graduation requirenent in total because the high school
graduation qualifying exam was also a requirement. He said
t hat after the 2014 school year there would be
approximately 2,372 people with certificates of achi evenent
who had not returned to earn a diplom; 591 had returned
and successfully taken the test. He relayed that the
transition |anguage offered those students who had not
passed the exam the opportunity to try again. He reiterated
that the saving in year 1 would be $1.4 mllion and then
$2.7 million in FY16.

9:08: 22 AM

Representative Costello queried the tests that were
currently conducted on high school students. M. Morse
responded that there were standard based assessnents
conducted in ninth and tenth grade. In eleventh grade,
there was the Wirk Keys assessnent. He said that there were
subpopul ati ons of students that took other tests.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



9:09: 23 AM

Representative Costello asked how long it took to
adm nister the exit exam M. Mrse replied that it was a 3
day exam testing approximately 2 hours per day.

9:09:46 AM

Representative Costello asked whether not having to teach
to the test would open up classroom tinme for teachers to
spend tinme on other |essons plans. M. Mrse responded that
the legislation would add to nore instructional tine.

9:10: 48 AM

Representative Costello shared the concern that high schoo
graduates were not entering the work force with a strong
work ethic. She wondered if those skills could be taught in
the classroom M. Mrse said that the departnent sought
districts that were successfully inplenmenting work ethic
| essons into their progranms and asked those districts to
help teach their peer districts. He said that the
department worked to network together districts that were
wor ki ng on the issue.

Representative Costello asked if the departnment had
consi dered videotaping the opportunities and putting them
online for other districts to access. M. Mirse said yes.

9:13:38 AM

Representative WIson asked how long a student who had
failed the test had left to retake the test. M. Mrse
replied that the student would have another opportunity in
fall of 2014 and spring of 2015.

9:14:27 AM

Representative WIson asked how nmany opportunities were
avai l able currently. M. Mrse said that under the current
system the student could take the test as many tinmes as
they needed to as long as they held a certificate of
achi evenent .

9:15: 06 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



Representative WIson wondered how the $1.4 nillion
reflected on the fiscal note had been deternmned. M. Mrse
said that the $1.4 mllion came from working with the
contractor. He said that the figure reflected the fixed
cost of the scanners and scorers. He said that the nunber
of students testing would not change the fiscal note
because nost of the $1.4 mllion was for fixed costs.

9:16: 26 AM

Representative WIson wondered if noney could be saved by
al l owi ng students to get the CGeneral Education Devel opnent
exam (GED) instead of retaking the exit exam M. Morse
shared that students had prepared for the exit exam and not
the CGED, which could present a challenge. He furthered that
the Departnment of Labor and W rkforce Developnment had
indicated that the GED was not an inappropriate test to use
for the purpose of an exit exam

9:17: 50 AM

Representative WIson queried the difference between the
two tests. Representative Hi ggins understood that the CGED
did not qualify for an assessnment for a high school diplona
because it was adm nistered through a different departnent.
He asserted that the legislature did not have the authority
t o change which departnment adm nistered the test.

9:18: 31 AM

Representative WIson believed that the legislature could
make a policy change in the bill. Representative Higgins
felt that the bill offered a fair conprom se and woul d save

having to change | aws and st at utes.

9:19:39 AM

Representative Guttenberg thought that the test could be
elimnated, and letters could be sent to all of the
students that had not passed it letting them know that they
qualified for a high school diplom, and a diplom would be
included in the letter.

9:20: 32 AM

Representative GQuttenberg thought that this wuld be a
sinmpler alternative that would bring closure for students.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



He believed that if the state no longer held to the
standard it did not nmke sense for the student to be
required to neet it.

9:20: 59 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether students who had not
passed the test in the past would receive diplonas
retroactively.

9:21: 08 AM

Representative Higgins said that the exit exam was a
firewall for the mlitary, the mlitary did not accept
certificates of achievenment. He furthered that sonme trade
schools did not accept certificates of achievenent. He
shared that if diplomas were given retroactively there
could be |egal reper cussi ons. He stressed that the
objective of the bill was to assure that everyone had an
equal opportunity.

9:23: 20 AM

Representative Quttenberg asked what students would need in
order to qualify for a high school diploma. Representative
Hi ggi ns responded that the student would receive their high
school diploma if they net the standards set by the state.

9:23: 40 AM

Representative Quttenberg surmsed that currently, all the
state standards could be net, but if the student did not
pass the exit exam they would not receive a diploma. He
understood that under the bill, if a student passed all of
the state standards they would receive a diplom
Representative Higgins replied in the affirmative.

9:24:12 AM

Representative GQuttenberg reiterated that all of the
students who had qualified under the state standards up
until now, but had not passed the exit exam should be

i ssued a diploma retroactively.
Representative Higgins thought t hat there had been

di sagreenent in terns of the value of the test. He proposed
to the commttee the idea that the test had added val ue for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



the years that it had been issued, that curriculunms in each
district had been changed to nmake sure that |ow perform ng
students net a standard; if diploms were to retroactively
be provided to all of the student that had failed the test
then the value of the law that existed would be negated, as
well as the work that students who had passed the test had
done. He said that the administration was in favor of sone
transition | anguage that would allow the past law to retain
value for the tinme it existed, and that an opportunity
could be provided for those forner students wth the
certificate of achievenent to receive the full diplom

9:26:44 AM

M. Mrse added that the reason he had fought the exit exam
for many years was because he believed that it should not
be tied to a high school diploma

Representative Quttenberg surmised that there was a finite
group of people that could retake the exam M. Morse
clarified that there were 2,372 people, not including the
cl ass of 2014, who could retake the test.

9:27:39 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze queried the current status of the
contract. M. Mrse responded that it was a yearly
renewabl e contract, negotiated on July 1 of each year. He
said that the contract could be renewed through 2015
wi t hout goi ng through the procurenent process.

9:28:12 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether there the state had a
financial obligation to the contract with the Septenber 1
effective date. M. Mirse replied that the only obligation
woul d be what was necessary in | aw

9:29:13 AM

Representative Munoz wondered how the 2,372 Al askans woul d
be contacted concerning retaking the test. M. Morse
responded that the departnment would work with the districts
that had the actual contact information. He added that
there woul d be public notices and adverti sing.

9:29: 53 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



Representative Munoz wondered if the fiscal note reflected
that outreach effort. V. Morse responded that the
departnent woul d be able to absorb the costs.

9: 30: 33 AM

Representative Gara asked why the transition |anguage was
necessary.

9:31:18 AM

M. Mrse stressed that the admnistration believed that
transition |anguage related to good policy.

9:32: 06 AM

M KE COONS, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), testified
against the legislation. He expressed confusion about the
fiscal note. He spoke of testinony on the bill from other
commi ttees.

9:36: 52 AM

MARY  NANUWAK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to the legislation. She expressed
di sappointnent with the way that education dollars were
all ocated within districts.

9:41: 58 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

HB 220 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

9:42: 41 AM
AT EASE

9:44: 25 AM
RECONVENED

#sb125
SENATE BI LL NO. 125

"An Act disapproving all recomendations of the State
Oficers Conpensation Commission relating to the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



salaries of state officers; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:44: 42 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze announced that the bill would prevent the
spending of state dollars for pay increases to the
governor, |t. governor and sal ary departnent heads.

9:44: 58 AM

Representative Costello requested that page 3 of the fisca
note be posted in color online so that the chart could be
nore easily under st ood.

9:45: 23 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze directed his staff to do so.

9: 45: 35 AM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT SB 125 out of committee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SB 125 was REPCRTED out of comittee with a "do pass"”
recommendation and with previously published zero fiscal
note: FN1 ( ADM .

#
ADJ OURNVENT
9:46: 45 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:46 a. m

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/04/ 14 8:48 A M



